
Pg. 1 of 4 

 

TOWN OF COLUMBIA 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

Adella G. Urban Administrative Offices Conference Room 
323 Route 87, Columbia, CT 

Monday, July 23, 2018   7:00 pm 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

 
 
Members Present:  Chairman Rick Nassiff, Don Schofield, Thomas Currier, Richard Napolitano, Robert Powell, E.J. Starkel, 
Walt Tabor (Alternate), Larry Preston (Alternate) 
Members Excused: Vice Chair Vera Englert 
Staff Present: Town Planner Paula Stahl, Board Clerk Terri Lasota  
Others Present: Ed Pelletier of Datum Engineering and Surveying, and 6 others 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER: R. Nassiff called the meeting to order at 7:00pm 

2. ROLL CALL AND SEATING OF ALTERNATES: Walt Tabor was seated for Vera Englert 

3. ADDITIONS/CHANGES TO AGENDA: None 

4. APPROVAL OF PZC REGULAR MEETING MINUTES OF June 25, 2018:   
EJ Starkel MOVED to APPROVE the meeting minutes of June 25, 2018.   
D. Schofield SECONDED.  MOTION CARRIED 6:0:1; R. Powell ABSTAINED 

5. AUDIENCE OF CITIZENS: None 

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

OPEN PUBLIC HEARING:  
 
R. Nassiff opened the public hearing at 7:02pm 

6.1.   PZC-1718-10: Heritage Farms application for subdivision and waiver of section 6.2(m) of the subdivision 
regulations, Heritage Road, Columbia CT; Assessor’s Map 004-092 
 
R. Nassiff read the application into record, and Ed Pelletier presented the application.  He explained that at the time 
of the original subdivision was proposed, regulations stated that only 15 lots were allowed on the cul-de-sac due to 
the lack of road access to the back of the property.   Since that time 45 additional lots have approved beyond the 
additional road.  E. Pelletier described where the lot in question was situated and went on to say that a pump septic 
plan for a single-family house has been submitted and approved by EHHD proving it’s a buildable lot.  Based on this 
EHHD approval, Mr. Pelletier requests a waiver of Section 6.2(m) by the ZBA of the 15 house limit so the lot can be 
used rather than being other land of Heritage Farm.  Per Section 12.5 the waiver can be allowed providing certain 
conditions are met:  Dilaj Drive can no longer exit onto RT 87, because the property at the end of Dilaj Drive was 
subdivided in 2004, removing potential access.  Park Place subdivision was approved in 2004; the use as a 
residential lot is in harmony with the neighborhood; and it is for one additional single-family house. 
 
R. Nassiff and E. Pelletier discussed the previous water runoff concerns due to faulty calculations and E. Pelletier 
noted that one catch basin was never put in.  D. Schofield asked if any other open space issues, Mr. Pelletier said he 
was not aware of any. 
 
R. Nassiff opened the hearing to public comments. 
 
Paul Horvath of 2 Dilaj Drive was concerned with the constant standing water in front of his yard already.  He 
assumed this lot to be open space according to the area map he got when he bought his house, and was also told 
there would be a play scape for the neighborhood which never came to be.  He added that he is against the 
application.  
 
Richard Cooper of 15 Heritage Rd said he agreed with Mr. Horvath. 
 



Pg. 2 of 4 

 

Robert Kelly of 14 Heritage Rd said he was told this was open space and that the lot was unbuildable, which is why 
he purchased his current home.  He added that he was told the same by previous owners, the Kings, Savoie’s, and 
many others in the area, and the understanding was that the lot would never be built on.  
 
Paul Horvath of 2 Dilaj Drive said the subdivision map marked the lot as open space; R. Nassiff asked P. Stahl if there 
was a copy of the subdivision map identifying the property as open space, P. Stahl said it is identified as OTHER 
LAND of Heritage Farm. R. Nassiff clarified that this term meant there was no specific designation to the lot at that 
point in time. 
 
R. Powell read into record a letter dated July 19, 2018 from resident David and Katheryn King of 7 Heritage Rd, who 
bought their property in 1990.  The letter indicates when the neighborhood was advertised, the lot in question was 
described as a future playground/recreation area.  This was an appealing feature of the neighborhood that factored 
into the purchasing of their home.   
 
Teresa Cooper of 15 Heritage Rd asked who currently owns the property and Ed Pelletier answered Heritage Farms.  
She also said she was told by Mr. Dilaj that it would be communal space and it was unbuildable.  T. Cooper also 
inquired about the proposed septic and whether the wetland areas were an issue; R. Nassiff spoke briefly regarding 
newer septic technology.   
 
Michelle Savoie of 9 Heritage Rd commented that she appreciates seeing the nature and felt there are enough 
homes for sale without need for building another.  R. Nassiff said we have to determine if this should be a building 
lot based on our current zoning regulations.   
 
Richard Cooper of 15 Heritage Rd asked about the size of the lot; Ed Pelletier said 2.2 acres.  R. Cooper referred to 
the covenants outlining guidelines for building in the Heritage Farm subdivision, and it was stated that this lot was 
never going to be built upon.  R. Nassiff said if a copy of the covenant could be provided it would be helpful since it 
could contain pertinent and essential information.  
 
Marina Cone of 151 RT 87 was concerned about how close the house will be to her barn. 
 
M. Savoy asked about another access point to RT 87;  R. Nassiff said there is no potential for the development of 
another access point.  P. Stahl said the last 2 lots were approved when potential access to Route 87 was available.  
 
R. Cooper of 15 Heritage Rd inquired about the decision and appeal process, R. Nassiff explained the process, 
adding that the only appeal action is through a civil lawsuit. 
 
P. Stahl pointed out for the record that the proper notification process per CT State Statutes was followed for this 
public hearing. 
 
Ed Pelletier commented that over time, many open spaces that became part of subdivisions were disassembled and 
reverted back to the original owners because the towns felt they were a maintenance burden.  P. Stahl stated that 
she read all the previous meeting minutes and there was never a mention of open space, however she quoted Mr. 
Dilaj’s comment from the minutes when he was asked if the land would be a future recreation area “not offered at 
this point but could be for future application”.  E. Pelletier commented that it probably never materialized due to 
administrative issues. 
 
Walt Tabor commented that according to the regulations, all requirements of all conditions for a waiver are to be 
met, but they are not.  He and E. Pelletier discussed the various conditions and the wording of the regulations. 
 
D. Scofield inquired if the new regulations, which require open space, would need to be followed since this 
application is for a modification of a subdivision.  
 
R. Powell commented on the concerns of the general public and between a civil action and a zoning action; he 
added that we have to do things that we don’t always agree with but must follow regulations, and encouraged 
neighbors also do their own investigating in addition to the research that the PZC will do.  He also noted that the 
number of lots on a cul-de-sac is limited for safety reasons, and the fire marshal should be included in any 



Pg. 3 of 4 

 

discussions.   
 
R. Powell noted that regarding drainage the water must be contained on sight with no increase of run-off.  He also 
agreed with the comments made by D. Scofield about open space and the newer regulations, and with W. Tabor 
regarding all regulation waiver conditions having to be met. 
 
R. Kelly read a letter written by his wife Sheryl Kelly into record.   
 
R. Nassiff asked P. Stahl to look into the history of the 15 lot cul-de-sac limit and potential to go through with a 
future expansion.   
 
EJ Starkel MOVED to CONTINUE the public hearing on August 13, 2018;  
D. Schofield SECONDED.  MOTION CARRIED 7:0:0 
 
 

CONTINUE PUBLIC HEARING:  
 
R. Nassiff re-opened the public hearing at 7:58pm 

6.2.   PZC-1718-06: Proposed Regulation Amendments:  Section 10 Nonconformity  
 
P. Stahl summarized the current state of discussion, such as having fewer tiers on matrix, possible stipulations for 
using the matrix, i.e. only use the matrix if not moving a well or septic system, or not moving it closer than 75 feet 
from a property line.  She also reviewed Mary Roickle’s report on side yard setback limits used by surrounding 
towns.  R. Nassiff commented side yard setbacks have more to do with aesthetics and large structures around the 
lake.   
 
D. Scofield inquired about the datum used to determine where septic is; R. Nassiff answered. 
 
Henry Beck of 41 Sleepy Hollow Road shared his suggestions, noting that any time any of the minimum separation 
distances of public health code are to be impacted, a special permit along with proper notice and a public hearing 
should be required. When a proposal comes in that increases a non-conformity which could affect what a neighbor 
can or cannot do, a permit should be required.  He also talked about maximum flexibility of the matrix and lot 
coverage percentages.  R. Nassiff asked Mr. Beck to revisit verbiage about wells and septics. 
 
D. Schofield asked if there is a requirement for well distance from a property line;  P. Stahl replied that a well can be 
no less than 10 feet from a property line.   W. Tabor noted that the zoning regulations and subdivision regulations 
do not directly address this; he and D. Schofield discussed well and septic arcs and the potential impact they have 
on surrounding properties, and how they affect applications.  P. Stahl referred to a cottage near a new house on 
Nuhfer Drive which apparently cannot be made into a year-round home because of things that where done on the 
property of the new house.  R. Nassiff commented on the exercise of rights and the notification process. 
 
R. Nassiff said the point that was brought up in the process of trying to simplify the regulations is losing the element 
of notification for adjoining land owners.  He questioned if there was a way of triggering notification for special 
permits and a reasonable threshold that gives some advantage to existing lot owners to not have to go through a 
special permit, and also a comfortable threshold that automatically triggers the process.  D. Schofield said a trigger 
would be if the well or septic arc crosses the property line.  W. Tabor asked if the PZC was within their right to ask 
that best practices are used to protect the possible future interests of neighboring properties.  W. Tabor, R. Powell 
and other members discussed. 
 
H. Beck suggested that if someone is borrowing their neighbors rights for a well, septic, or any of this type of thing, 
then they are influencing what their neighbor can do on their own property in the future and taking some rights 
from them.  R. Nassiff reminded the members that the intention was to make the more simple items easier.   
 
P. Stahl handed out revised proposed regulations, she and the board members and H. Beck reviewed and discussed 
the matrix adjustments and reasons for them.  



Pg. 4 of 4 

 

 
R. Nassiff asked P. Stahl to prepare a new draft that incorporates the changed discussed. 
 
R. Nassiff MOVED to CONTINUE the public hearing on August 13, 2018; 
EJ Starkel SECONDED.  MOTION CARRIED 7:0:0 
 

7. UNFINISHED BUSINESS (Discussion/Possible Action)  

7.1.   PZC-1718-10: Heritage Farms application for subdivision and waiver of section 6.2(m) of the subdivision 
regulations, Heritage Road, Columbia CT; Assessor’s Map 004-092 
 
No Discussion 
 

7.2.   PZC-1718-06: Proposed Regulation Amendments:  Section 10 Nonconformity  
 
No Discussion 
 

8. NEW BUSINESS: None 

9. REGULATION REVISIONS:  

9.1.   Commercial Manufacturing Regulations Revisions 
 
Paula provided Columbia Zoning Study maps for members.   
 

10. COMMUNICATIONS AND REPORTS:  
Last fiscal year end activity report comparing previous 2 years. 

11. COMMISSION OPEN DISCUSSION: None 

12. AUDIENCE OF CITIZENS: None 

13. ADJOURNMENT:  
R. Nassiff MOVED to ADJOURN; EJ Starkel SECONDED.  MOTION CARRIED 7:0:0 
The meeting was ADJOURNED at 8:51pm. 

 
Respectfully submitted by Terri Lasota, Board Clerk 
Please see the minutes of subsequent meetings for approval of these minutes and any corrections hereto. 


